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BENCHMARKING INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT 2020
[bookmark: country_name1]Public-Private Partnerships in Infrastructure [country_name]

Dear Contributor,

On behalf of the World Bank Group, we would like to invite you to participate in the Public-Private Partnerships indicator of the Benchmarking Infrastructure Development initiative in [country_name]. This indicator is part of the Benchmarking Infrastructure Development Global Initiative that aims to leverage positive policy changes to promote transparency and efficiency in the preparation, procurement and management of large infrastructure projects (for information on past editions, please visit bpp.worldbank.org). 

This survey assesses the quality of the legal and regulatory framework during the PPP project cycle. It is structured in six sections (A-F). It starts with a brief section on your experience with PPPs (A), which is followed by an overview of the legal and institutional framework for PPPs (B) in [country_name], and an evaluation of key features in PPP preparation (C), procurement (D), and contract management (E). The last section (F) assesses the treatment of unsolicited proposals. 

This questionnaire has two type of questions, regulatory-based questions (in black font) and practice-based questions (in blue font). Regulatory-based questions must always be accompanied by the corresponding regulatory basis. Practice-based questions must always be answered, based on your experience, independently of regulatory-based answers. 

While responding to the survey, please note that if your answers differ by sector, type or size of the contract, or other variables, you should refer to the case study assumptions below.

Case study assumptions
· The Private Partner (the Project Company) is a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)[footnoteRef:2] established by a consortium of privately owned firms, which operate in [country_name].  [2:  The Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV), also Special Purpose Company (SPC) or Special Purpose Entity (SPE), is a company specifically formed to undertake a specific project (in this case the PPP project.] 

· The procuring authority is [nat_authority] in [country_name] that is planning to procure the design, build, finance (full or partial), operation and maintenance of a national/federal infrastructure project in the transportation sector (i.e. national highway) with an estimated investment value of USD 150 million (or the equivalent in your local currency) funded with availability payments and/or user fees.
· To this end, the procuring authority initiates a public call for tenders/ invitation for bids/ request for proposal/ request for qualification, following a competitive PPP procurement procedure. 

Please note that your responses will be held in strict confidentiality and will not be attributed directly to you or your organization. If you wish your contribution to be acknowledged in the final report (unless explicitly otherwise specified by you), please provide your contact information at the end of the survey.

Please complete and return the survey no later than fifteen days from the date of receipt. Should you have any question or need assistance with the survey, please do not hesitate to contact us.


 Definitions

· “Public-Private Partnership (PPP)” refers to any contractual arrangement between a public entity or authority and a private entity, for providing a public asset or service[footnoteRef:3], in which the private party bears significant risk and management responsibility. For the purpose of this survey, this definition applies irrespective of the terminology used in the particular country or jurisdiction and applies both to government-pays or user-pays PPP. [3:  "Public asset or service" refers to projects related to basic services where there is not a competitive unregulated market for their provision. Therefore, it excludes activities such as Cell licenses, real estate and mineral resource exploitation.] 

· The “regulatory framework” encompasses all laws, regulations, policies, binding guidelines or instructions, standard PPP contracts, other legal texts of general application, judicial decisions and administrative rulings governing or setting precedent in connection with PPPs. In this context, the term “policies” refers to other government-issued documents that are binding to all stakeholders, enforced in similar ways to laws and regulations, and provide detailed instructions for the implementation of PPPs. It should not be confused with Policy in the sense of a government’s statement of intent to use PPPs as a course of action to deliver public services. The “regulatory framework” includes but is not limited to those laws, regulations, policies, etc. dealing with PPPs (i.e. procurement of PPPs may be governed by the general procurement framework; planning and budgeting issues may be regulated instead by broader public finance related laws and regulations). 
· The “Procuring Authority” is the Ministry, Department or Agency responsible for ensuring that the relevant assets and/or services are provided by the private partner after successful completion of procurement/ bidding process. It is the authority in charge of the PPP (i.e. identifying, preparing, procuring, awarding and managing the PPP contract).
· Procurement terminology: Considering that procurement-related terminology varies across jurisdictions, depending on the type of procurement procedure and the stage of the process, the terms used in the survey should be interpreted by contributors to best fit the local naming conventions. In particular, the following non-exhaustive list of terms can be broadly understood as interchangeable in the context of the survey: 
· Bidding/tendering process/selection process/procurement 
· Bid/tender/proposal
· Call for tenders/tender notice/invitation for bids/request for qualifications (RFQ)/request for proposals (RFP) - in cases when there is not an RFQ.
· Tender documents/bidding documents/specifications/request for proposals (RFP)

We would like to thank you again for your invaluable contribution to the work of the World Bank Group. 

Mikel Tejada Ibanez						Fernanda Ruiz Nunez	
Topic Leader							Task Team Leader
Tel: +1 202 458-5134						Tel: +1 (202) 473-5754	
Email: mtejadaibanez@worldbank.org				 Email: fruiznunez@worldbank.org				

A. 
Experience with PPPs

	1. Do you have experience working on infrastructure (transportation, energy and/or water) PPP contracts?

	[bookmark: q1_experience_y]|_|Yes
[bookmark: q1_experience_n]|_|No

1.1. [bookmark: q1_experience_number]If yes, in how many infrastructure (transportation, energy and/or water) PPP contracts have you (or your firm/agency) been involved in within the last two (2) years in [country_name]? Please provide an approximate number:      



B. Regulatory and Institutional Framework for PPPs

	2. Does the regulatory framework in your country allow procuring PPPs?

	[bookmark: q2_allow_y][bookmark: q2_allow_laws][bookmark: q2_allow_web]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the relevant regulatory framework and the year of adoption:       and provide a link to a government–supported website where the mentioned regulatory framework is available or provide an electronic copy of it:      
[bookmark: q2_allow_n]|_|No

2.1. Are you aware of any reforms (in the regulatory frameworks – laws, regulations, policies, etc.- or in generally followed practices) related to PPPs that: 
Took place in or after June 2017 but BEFORE June 1, 2019?
[bookmark: q2_1_reform_y][bookmark: q2_1_reform_des]|_| Yes. Please describe:      
[bookmark: q2_1_reform_n]|_| No
Are ongoing and/or are planned to be adopted AFTER June 1, 2019?
[bookmark: q2_1_2_reform_y][bookmark: q2_1_2_reform_des]|_| Yes. Please describe:      
[bookmark: q2_1_2_reform_n]|_| No

2.2. For which of the following sectors is the above-mentioned regulatory framework applicable? 
[bookmark: q2_2_trans][bookmark: q2_2_trans_bas]|_| Transportation. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q2_2_water][bookmark: q2_2_water_bas]|_| Water Supply, Sewerage, Solid Waste Management and irrigation. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q2_2_energy][bookmark: q2_2_energy_bas]|_| Energy generation/transmission and distribution. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q2_2_ict][bookmark: q2_2_ict_basis]|_| ICT. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q2_2_social][bookmark: q2_2_social_bas]|_| Social infrastructure, including hospitals, education, prisons, housing, etc. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q2_2_other][bookmark: q2_2_other_bas]|_| Other. If yes, specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      




	3. Besides national defense and other matters of national security, does the regulatory framework explicitly prohibits or restricts PPPs in any of the following sectors?

	3.1. [bookmark: q3_sector_1][bookmark: q3_sector_1_basis]|_| Transportation. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
3.2. [bookmark: q3_sector_2][bookmark: q3_sector_2_basis]|_| Water Supply, Sewerage, Solid Waste Management and irrigation. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:     
3.3. [bookmark: q3_sector_3][bookmark: q3_sector_3_basis]|_| Energy generation, transmission and distribution. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
3.4. [bookmark: q3_sector_4][bookmark: q3_sector_4_basis]|_| ICT. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
3.5. [bookmark: q3_sector_5][bookmark: q3_sector_5_basis]|_| Social infrastructure, including hospitals, education, prisons, housing, etc. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
3.6. [bookmark: q3_sector_6][bookmark: q3_sector_6_basis]|_| Other. If yes, specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      



	4. [bookmark: country_name6]Please identify the PPP procuring authorities in [country_name] and provide their website(s) (if available):

	[bookmark: q4_identify]      



	5. Is there a specialized government entity(ies) that facilitates the PPP program (PPP Unit)?

	[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_y][bookmark: q5_PPPunit_name][bookmark: q5_PPPunit_year][bookmark: q5_PPPunit_basis1]|_|Yes. If yes, please indicate its name(s), and its website(s) (if available):      , the year of establishment       and the relevant legal/regulatory basis      . 
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_n]|_|No
If yes, what are the main responsibilities of the agency(ies) (check all that apply):
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_a]|_| PPP regulation and policy guidance.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_b]|_| PPP capacity building for other public authorities. 
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_c]|_| PPP promotion among the public and/or private sectors in national and international forums.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_d]|_| Technical support in implementing PPP projects.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_e]|_| Identification and selection of PPP projects from the pipeline. 
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_f]|_| Revision of fiscal risks borne by the Government.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_g]|_| Consultation with affected communities on potential impact of PPP projects.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_h]|_| Approval of PPP projects.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_i]|_| Undertaking the procurement of PPPs.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_j]|_| Oversight of PPP implementation.
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_k]|_| Post-project appraisal and audit
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_other][bookmark: q5_PPPunit_other_spe]|_| Other, please specify:      
[bookmark: q5_PPPunit_basis2]Please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      

5.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is this agency(ies) properly equipped to conduct its responsibilities mentioned above? 
[bookmark: q5_1_always][bookmark: q5_1_often][bookmark: q5_1_occas][bookmark: q5_1_rarely][bookmark: q5_1_never][bookmark: q5_1_elaborate] |_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
5.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does this agency(ies) perform its duties effectively? 
[bookmark: q5_2_always][bookmark: q5_2_often][bookmark: q5_2_occas][bookmark: q5_2_rarely][bookmark: q5_2_never][bookmark: q5_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

5.3. Additionally, is there a central project development fund (support mechanism) for project preparation?
[bookmark: q5_3_fund_y][bookmark: q5_3_fund_name][bookmark: q5_3_fund_year][bookmark: q5_3_fund_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please indicate its name, and its website (if available):      , the year of establishment       and the relevant legal/regulatory basis      .  
[bookmark: q5_3_fund_n]|_|No
5.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does this project development facilities have enough resources to support adequately project preparation? 
[bookmark: q5_4_always][bookmark: q5_4_often][bookmark: q5_4_occasionally][bookmark: q5_4_rarely][bookmark: q5_4_never][bookmark: q5_4_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	6. Please provide any additional information or comments on the answers to the question(s) above and indicate which one(s) you are referring to:

	[bookmark: q6_addtl1]     



C. Preparation of PPPs

	7. [bookmark: _Hlk10796453][bookmark: q8_2_account_specify]Does the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority approve the PPP project before launching the procurement process?

	[bookmark: q7_finance_y][bookmark: q7_finance_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q7_finance_n]|_|No

7.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the procurement process for a PPP project launched without the approval from the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority? 
[bookmark: q7_1_always][bookmark: q7_1_often][bookmark: q7_1_occas][bookmark: q7_1_rarely][bookmark: q7_1_never][bookmark: q7_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

7.2. Does the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority approve the PPP project before signing the PPP contract?
[bookmark: q7_2_finance_y][bookmark: q7_2_finance_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q7_2_finance_n]|_|No

7.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the PPP contract signed without the previous approval from the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority? 
[bookmark: q7_3_always][bookmark: q7_3_often][bookmark: q7_3_occas][bookmark: q7_3_rarely][bookmark: q7_3_never][bookmark: q7_3_elab] |_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

7.4. [bookmark: _Hlk1983659]Does the Ministry of Finance (or government more broadly) have a specific system of:
[bookmark: q7_4_budget][bookmark: q7_4_budget_basis]|_| Budgeting for PPP projects (e.g., including the estimated total cost of the PPP project over the life of the project in the budget cycle). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q7_4_report][bookmark: q7_4_reporting_basis]|_| Reporting liabilities (explicit and implicit, direct and contingent) arising from PPPs (e.g., disclosing information about the public sector commitments on the PPP project). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q7_4_accounting][bookmark: q7_4_accounting_basi]|_| Accounting liabilities (explicit and implicit, direct and contingent) arising from PPPs (e.g., the public sector commitments to the PPP project are recorded in the national accounts). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      

7.5. If yes, please indicate which of the following alternatives best describes the regulation:
[bookmark: q7_5_ipsas][bookmark: q7_5_ipsas_basis]|_|International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q7_5_esa][bookmark: q7_5_esa_basis]|_|Other international standard (e.g. European System of Accounts). Please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q7_5_other][bookmark: q7_5_other_basis]|_|Other. Please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      

7.6. Based on your experience, in practice, do the systems in place ensure that the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority fully recognize the public-sector commitments arising from PPPs over the life of the projects? 
[bookmark: q7_6_always][bookmark: q7_6_often][bookmark: q7_6_occas][bookmark: q7_6_rarely][bookmark: q7_6_never][bookmark: q7_6_elab]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

7.7. Does the Ministry of Finance (or government more broadly) disclose PPP liabilities (explicit and implicit, direct and contingent) on an online platform/database? 
[bookmark: q7_7_disclose_y][bookmark: q7_7_disclose_basis][bookmark: q7_7_disclose_web]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and specify the website:      .
[bookmark: q7_7_disclose_n]|_|No

7.8. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are PPP related liabilities disclosed on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q7_7_always][bookmark: q7_7_often][bookmark: q7_7_occ][bookmark: q7_7_rarely][bookmark: q7_7_never][bookmark: q7_7_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	8. Besides the procuring authority and the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority, do(es) any other authority(s) approve the PPP project before launching the procurement process (e.g. Cabinet, Cabinet Committee, Parliament, Supreme Audit Office, etc.)?

	[bookmark: q8_approval_y][bookmark: q8_approval_auth][bookmark: q8_approval_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the relevant authority:      and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q8_approval_n]|_|No

8.1. Besides the procuring authority and the Ministry of Finance or Central Budgetary Authority, does any other authority(s) approve the PPP project before signing the PPP contract?
[bookmark: q8_1_approval_y][bookmark: q8_1_approval_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q8_1_approval_n]|_|No



	9. Please select the option that best describes the way your government ensures that PPP projects are consistent with other government public priorities (e.g., in the context of a national public investment system, multi-year perspective plans, medium-term budgetary framework)

	[bookmark: q9_prioritize_a][bookmark: q9_prioritize_a_basi]|_| The regulatory framework provides for the inclusion of PPPs in the national public investment system/medium-term budgetary framework and details a specific procedure to ensure the consistency of PPPs with other public investment priorities. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q9_prioritize_b][bookmark: q9_prioritize_b_basi]|_| The regulatory framework prescribes the need for PPPs to be consistent with all other investment priorities without establishing a specific procedure to achieve that goal. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q9_prioritize_c][bookmark: q9_prioritize_c_basi]|_| The regulatory framework does not include any provisions, but the procuring authority evaluates the consistency of PPPs with other government investment priorities in practice. If yes, please elaborate:      
[bookmark: q9_prioritize_d][bookmark: q9_prioritize_d_basi]|_| The procuring authority does not evaluate PPPs against existing government priorities. Please elaborate and provide examples:      

9.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are PPPs part of the broader government public priorities/public investment system? 
[bookmark: q9_1_always][bookmark: q9_1_often][bookmark: q9_1_occas][bookmark: q9_1_rarely][bookmark: q9_1_never][bookmark: q9_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	10. 



Which of the following assessments are conducted when identifying and preparing a PPP in order to inform the decision to proceed with it? (check all that apply):

	Assessment
	Relevant legal/regulatory provision
	Is there a specific methodology?
	If yes, please elaborate[footnoteRef:4] [4:  If possible, please provide a link to a government–supported website where the mentioned methodology is available or provide an electronic copy of it.] 

	In practice, how often is this assessment done? 


	10.1. Socio-economic analysis (cost-benefit analysis of the socio-economic impact of the PPP project)
	[bookmark: q10_1_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_1_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_1_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_1_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_1_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_1_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_1_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_1_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_1_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_1_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_1_elaborate]Details:      

	10.2. Fiscal Affordability assessment, including the identification of the required long-term public commitments (explicit and implicit, direct and contingent liabilities)
	[bookmark: q10_2_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_2_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_2_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_2_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_2_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_2_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_2_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_2_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_2_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_2_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_2_elaborate]Details:      

	10.3. Risk identification, allocation and assessment (risk matrix)
	[bookmark: q10_3_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_3_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_3_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_3_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_3_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_3_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_3_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_3_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_3_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_3_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_3_elaborate]Details:      

	10.4. Comparative assessment to evaluate whether a PPP is the best option when compared to other procurement alternatives (i.e., value for money analysis, public sector comparator)
	[bookmark: q10_4_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_4_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_4_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_4_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_4_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_4_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_4_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_4_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_4_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_4_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_4_elaborate]Details:      

	10.5. Financial viability or bankability assessment
	[bookmark: q10_5_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_5_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_5_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_5_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_5_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_5_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_5_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_5_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_5_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_5_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_5_elaborate]Details:      

	10.6. Procurement Strategy (i.e., quick assessment to plan and better strategize the tendering process in advance so it is fit for purpose)
	[bookmark: q10_6_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_6_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_6_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_6_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_6_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_6_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_6_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_6_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_6_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_6_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_6_elaborate]Details:      

	10.7. Market sounding/ assessment[footnoteRef:5]  [5:  Market sounding and/or assessment refers to a procedure that evaluates potential interest from contractors, providing insight into the likely level of market interest and providing the procuring authority with an opportunity to adjust the project scope if necessary to ensure private sector participation and to improve competition.] 

a. Including the potential interest from contractors and capacity in the market for the contract 
	[bookmark: q10_7_studies_a]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_7_studies_a_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_7_a_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_7_a_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_7_studies_a_m_sp]     
	[bookmark: q10_7_a_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_7_a_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_7_a_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_7_a_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_7_a_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_7_a_elaborate]Details:      

	b. specifically designed to identify the solutions and technology available as well as the opportunities for innovation
	[bookmark: q10_7_studies_b]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_7_studies_b_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_7_b_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_7_b_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_7_studies_b_m_sp]     
	[bookmark: q10_7_b_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_7_b_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_7_b_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_7_b_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_7_b_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_7_b_elaborate]Details:      

	10.8. Environmental impact assessment
	[bookmark: q10_8_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_8_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_8_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_8_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_8_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_8_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_8_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_8_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_8_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_8_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_8_elaborate]Details:      

	[bookmark: _Hlk3989330]10.8.1 Consultation process with affected communities explicitly included in the environmental impact assessment
	[bookmark: q10_8_1_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_8_1_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_8_1_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_8_1_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No
	[bookmark: q10_8_1_studies_m_sp]     
	[bookmark: q10_8_1_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_8_1_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_8_1_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_8_1_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_8_1_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_8_1_elaborate]Details:      

	10.9. Social impact assessment
	[bookmark: q10_9_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_9_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_9_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_9_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No 
	[bookmark: q10_9_studies_m_spec]     
	[bookmark: q10_9_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_9_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_9_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_9_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_9_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_9_elaborate]Details:      

	10.9.1 Consultation process with affected communities explicitly included in the social impact assessment 

	[bookmark: q10_9_1_studies]|_|
	[bookmark: q10_9_1_studies_bas]     
	[bookmark: q10_9_1_studies_m_y][bookmark: q10_9_1_studies_m_n]|_| Yes|_| No
	[bookmark: q10_9_1_studies_m_sp]     
	[bookmark: q10_9_1_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q10_9_1_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q10_9_1_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q10_9_1_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q10_9_1_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q10_9_1_elaborate]Details:      



	11. Does the procuring authority include the assessments in the request for proposals and/or tender documents?

	[bookmark: q11_assinclude_y][bookmark: q11_assinclude_basis][bookmark: q11_assinclude_a][bookmark: q11_assinclude_b][bookmark: q11_assinclude_c][bookmark: q11_assinclude_d][bookmark: q11_assinclude_e][bookmark: q11_assinclude_f][bookmark: q11_assinclude_g][bookmark: q11_assinclude_h][bookmark: q11_assinclude_i][bookmark: q11_assinclude_j][bookmark: q11_assinclude_speci]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and specify which of the assessments are included in the request for proposals and/or tender documents: |_| Socio-economic analysis; |_| Fiscal Affordability assessment; |_|Risk identification and allocation; |_| Comparative assessment; |_| Financial viability; |_| Market sounding for private sector interest; |_| Market sounding for technological solutions;|_| Environmental impact assessment; |_| Social impact assessment; |_| Any other, please specify      
[bookmark: q11_assinclude_n]|_| No

11.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are assessments included in the requests for proposals/tender documents?
[bookmark: q11_1_always][bookmark: q11_1_often][bookmark: q11_1_occasionally][bookmark: q11_1_rarely][bookmark: q11_1_never][bookmark: q11_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
11.2. Are the assessments published online?
[bookmark: q11_2_online_y][bookmark: q11_2_online_basis][bookmark: q11_2_online_web][bookmark: q11_2_online_a][bookmark: q11_2_online_b][bookmark: q11_2_online_c][bookmark: q11_2_online_d][bookmark: q11_2_online_e][bookmark: q11_2_online_f][bookmark: q11_2_online_g][bookmark: q11_2_online_h][bookmark: q11_2_online_i]|_| Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      , specify the website       and, please specify which of the assessments are published online:  |_| Socio-economic analysis; |_| Fiscal Affordability assessment; |_|Risk identification and allocation; |_| Comparative assessment; |_| Financial viability; |_| Market sounding for private sector interest; |_| Market sounding for technological solutions; |_| Environmental impact assessment; |_| Social impact assessment
[bookmark: q11_2_online_n]|_| No
11.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are these assessments published on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q11_3_always][bookmark: q11_3_often][bookmark: q11_3_occas][bookmark: q11_3_rarely][bookmark: q11_3_never][bookmark: q11_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	12. Are tender/bidding documents made available online?

	[bookmark: q12_docs_y][bookmark: q12_docs_basis][bookmark: q12_docs_web]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       If yes, please provide the website:      
[bookmark: q12_docs_n]|_|No
12.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are tender documents published on a functioning website of open access?
[bookmark: q12_1_always][bookmark: q12_1_often][bookmark: q12_1_occas][bookmark: q12_1_rarely][bookmark: q12_1_never][bookmark: q12_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
12.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are tender/bidding documents published on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q12_2_always][bookmark: q12_2_often][bookmark: q12_2_occasionally][bookmark: q12_2_rarely][bookmark: q12_2_never][bookmark: q12_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
12.3. Do the tender documents include a draft PPP contract?
[bookmark: q12_3_draft_y][bookmark: q12_3_draft_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q12_3_draft_n]|_|No.
12.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do the tender documents include a draft PPP contract?
[bookmark: q12_4_always][bookmark: q12_4_often][bookmark: q12_4_occas][bookmark: q12_4_rarely][bookmark: q12_4_never][bookmark: q12_4_elab]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	13. Have standardized PPP model contracts and/or transaction documents been developed?

	[bookmark: q13_standard_y][bookmark: q13_standard_copy][bookmark: q13_standard_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide a government- supported website where the mentioned standards are available or provide an electronic copy of them:       and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q13_standard_n]|_|No 
13.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are standardized PPP model contracts and/or transactions document used? 
[bookmark: q13_1_always][bookmark: q13_1_often][bookmark: q13_1_occas][bookmark: q13_1_rarely][bookmark: q13_1_never][bookmark: q13_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	14. Does the procuring authority/responsible government entity have a role in either providing or facilitating any of the following requirements?

	14.1. Obtaining the required environmental permits. 
[bookmark: q14_1_envper_y][bookmark: q14_1_envper_role][bookmark: q14_1_envper_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the role of the procuring authority       and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q14_1_envper_n]|_|No 

14.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how many days does it take to obtain such permits once the PPP contract is signed? (Please select one only):
[bookmark: q14_2_before][bookmark: q14_2_30][bookmark: q14_2_180]|_|Permits obtained before the contract signing |_|Between 0 and 30 |_|Between 31 and 180
[bookmark: q14_2_181][bookmark: q14_2_elaborate]|_|More than 181 Please elaborate:      

14.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do delays occur in obtaining such permits? (please select one only):
[bookmark: q14_3_always][bookmark: q14_3_often][bookmark: q14_3_occasionally][bookmark: q14_3_rarely][bookmark: q14_3_never][bookmark: q14_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

14.4. Obtaining the possession of required land. 
[bookmark: q14_4_land_y][bookmark: q14_4_land_role][bookmark: q14_4_land_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the role of the procuring authority        and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q14_4_land_n]|_|No 

14.5. Based on your experience, in practice, how many days does it take to obtain the possession of all required land (100%) once the PPP contract is signed? (Please select one only):
[bookmark: q14_5_before][bookmark: q14_5_30][bookmark: q14_5_180][bookmark: q14_5_181][bookmark: q14_5_elaborate]|_|All required land obtained before the contract signing |_|Between 0 and 30 |_|Between 31 and 180 |_| More than 181 Please elaborate:      

14.6. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do delays occur in obtaining the possession of all the required land? (please select one only):
[bookmark: q14_6_always][bookmark: q14_6_often][bookmark: q14_6_occasionally][bookmark: q14_6_rarely][bookmark: q14_6_never][bookmark: q14_6_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

14.7. Obtaining the required right of way. 
[bookmark: q14_7_rightway_y][bookmark: q14_7_rightway_role][bookmark: q14_7_rightway_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the role of the procuring authority        and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q14_7_rightway_n]|_|No 

14.8. Based on your experience, in practice, how many days does it take to obtain such a right once the PPP contract is signed? (Please select one only):
[bookmark: q14_8_before][bookmark: q14_8_30][bookmark: q14_8_180]|_|Right of way obtained before the contract signing |_|Between 0 and 30 |_|Between 31 and 180
[bookmark: q14_8_181][bookmark: q14_8_elaborate]|_| More than 181 Please elaborate:      

14.9. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do delays occur in obtaining such a right? (please select one only):
[bookmark: q14_9_always][bookmark: q14_9_often][bookmark: q14_9_occ][bookmark: q14_9_rarely][bookmark: q14_9_never][bookmark: q14_9_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	15. Please provide any additional information or comments on the answers to the question(s) above and indicate which one(s) you are referring to:

	[bookmark: q15_addtl2]     



D. Procurement/Tendering of PPPs

	16. Which of the following options best describes the required qualifications of the bid evaluation committee members? (Please select only one)

	[bookmark: q16_members_a][bookmark: q16_members_basis]|_| The membership of the bid evaluation committee is specified and/or its members are required to meet detailed qualifications. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q16_members_b][bookmark: q16_members_b_basis]|_| The bid evaluation committee members require sufficient qualification without specific details. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q16_members_c][bookmark: q16_members_c_elab]|_| The bid evaluation committee members are not required to have any specific qualifications. Please elaborate and provide examples:      
16.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do bid evaluation committee members have competence in performing their duties? (please select one only):
[bookmark: q16_1_always][bookmark: q16_1_often][bookmark: q16_1_occ][bookmark: q16_1_rarely][bookmark: q16_1_never][bookmark: q16_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	17. Does the procuring authority issue an invitation for bids/ tender notice for the PPP project?

	[bookmark: q17_notice_y][bookmark: q17_notice_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the means of publication and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q17_notice_n]|_|No

17.1. If yes, is the public procurement notice published online?
[bookmark: q17_1_online_y][bookmark: q17_1_online_web]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the website:      
[bookmark: q17_1_online_n]|_|No
17.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is this notice published on a website of free and open access?
[bookmark: q17_2_always][bookmark: q17_2_often][bookmark: q17_2_occ][bookmark: q17_2_rarely][bookmark: q17_2_never][bookmark: q17_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
17.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is this notice published on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q17_3_always][bookmark: q17_3_often][bookmark: q17_3_occ][bookmark: q17_3_rarely][bookmark: q17_3_never][bookmark: q17_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	18. Are foreign companies subject to any of the following restrictions when participating in the bidding process (check all that apply)??

	[bookmark: q18_foreign_a][bookmark: q18_foreign_a_basis]|_| Prohibition to bid in the public tender (including the possibility to discretionary use a procedure that precludes the participation of foreign firms). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       
[bookmark: q18_foreign_b][bookmark: q18_foreign_b_basis]|_| Requirement to have an office or a branch in the country before being allowed to bid in the public tender. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q18_foreign_c][bookmark: q18_foreign_c_basis]|_| Requirement to form a joint venture with domestic firm(s) to be allowed to bid in the public tender. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q18_foreign_d][bookmark: q18_foreign_d_spec][bookmark: q18_foreign_d_basis]|_| Requirement to have prior experience in the country to bid in the public tender. If yes, please specify       and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q18_foreign_e][bookmark: q18_foreign_e_spec][bookmark: q18_foreign_e_basis]|_| Threshold for public tenders to be open for foreign participation/to be considered international tenders. If yes, please specify       and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      

18.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do regulatory requirements unduly restrict the participation of foreign companies in bidding/ tendering/ pre-qualification/ procurement/ selection process? (please select one only):
[bookmark: q18_1_always][bookmark: q18_1_often][bookmark: q18_1_occ][bookmark: q18_1_rarely][bookmark: q18_1_never][bookmark: q18_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
18.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do foreign companies participate in bidding/tendering processes? (please select one only):
[bookmark: q18_2_always][bookmark: q18_2_often][bookmark: q18_2_occ][bookmark: q18_2_rarely][bookmark: q18_2_never][bookmark: q18_2_elab]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
18.3. [bookmark: q18_3_enlist]If never, what are the key reasons for their non-participation, please list:      




	19. Does the procuring authority grant the potential bidders a minimum period of time to submit their bids?

	[bookmark: q19_minimum_y][bookmark: q19_minimum_basis][bookmark: q19_minimum_days]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and the time in calendar days:      
[bookmark: q19_minimum_n]|_|No
19.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how many days of minimum period does the procuring authority actually grant bidders to submit their bids? (Please select one only):
[bookmark: a19_1_30][bookmark: a19_1_90][bookmark: a19_1_180][bookmark: a19_1_181]|_|Between 0 and 30 |_|Between 31 and 90 |_|Between 91 and 180 |_| More than 181
[bookmark: a19_1_elaborate]Please elaborate:      



	20. 



What are the procurement procedures available and/or set as default for PPP contracts? (check only one option for each aspect)

	
	Procedure
	Available 
	Default 
	Relevant legal/regulatory provision

	20.1. Open competitive tendering/bidding
	[bookmark: q20_1_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_1_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_1_basis]     

	20.2. Competitive tendering/bidding with pre-qualification stage (Restricted tendering)
	[bookmark: q20_2_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_2_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_2_basis]     

	20.3.  Multi-stage tendering/bidding (with shortlisting of final candidate(s))
	[bookmark: q20_3_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_3_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_3_basis]     

	20.4. Competitive dialogue 
	[bookmark: q20_4_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_4_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_4_basis]     

	20.5. Best and Final Offer (BAFO)
	[bookmark: q20_5_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_5_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_5_basis]     

	20.6. Direct negotiation 
	[bookmark: q20_6_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_6_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_6_basis]     

	20.7. Other. Please, specify 
	[bookmark: q20_7_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_7_default]|_|
	[bookmark: q20_7_basis]     



20.8. If direct negotiation is either an available or default option, does the regulatory framework restrict this procedure to certain exceptional conditions and circumstances (including cases of single source providers or applicable to a certain threshold)?
[bookmark: q20_8_direct_y][bookmark: q20_8_direct_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q20_8_direct_n]|_|No.
20.9. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are PPP projects procured as a result of direct negotiations?  
[bookmark: q20_9_always][bookmark: q20_9_often][bookmark: q20_9_occ][bookmark: q20_9_rarely][bookmark: q20_9_never][bookmark: q20_9_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

20.10. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority use procurement procedures (e. g., multi stage tendering, competitive dialogue, BAFO) specifically designed to incentivize innovation?
[bookmark: q20_10_always][bookmark: q20_10_often][bookmark: q20_10_occ][bookmark: q20_10_rarely][bookmark: q20_10_never][bookmark: q20_10_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:       

20.11. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procurement procedure of a PPP project ensure that all potentially qualified bidders can participate?  
[bookmark: q20_11_always][bookmark: q20_11_often][bookmark: q20_11_occ][bookmark: q20_11_rarely][bookmark: q20_11_never][bookmark: q20_11_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	21. Do the tender documents detail the procedure of the procurement process, providing the same information to all the bidders?

	[bookmark: q21_info_y][bookmark: q21_info_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q21_info_n]|_|No. 
21.1.  Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority provide the bidders with sufficient information to equally understand the procurement process?
[bookmark: q21_1_always][bookmark: q21_1_often][bookmark: q21_1_occ][bookmark: q21_1_rarely][bookmark: q21_1_never][bookmark: q21_1_elab]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	22. Do the tender documents unambiguously specify the qualification requirements (or the prequalification requirements when applicable) making them available to all potential bidders as part of the tender notice/ invitation for bids?

	[bookmark: q22_qualif_y][bookmark: q22_qualif_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q22_qualif_n]|_|No
22.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do invitations for bids/tender notices clearly include the qualification requirements (or prequalification requirements when applicable), making them equally accessible to all bidders?
[bookmark: q22_1_always][bookmark: q22_1_often][bookmark: q22_1_occ][bookmark: q22_1_rarely][bookmark: q22_1_never][bookmark: q22_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

22.2. Are there any parameters/limits to the qualification requirements to ensure that they do not unduly restrict competition of qualified bidders? 
[bookmark: q22_2_limits_y][bookmark: q22_2_limits_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q22_2_limits_n]|_|No.

22.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do the do the qualification requirements (or prequalification requirements when applicable) unduly restrict the participation of qualified bidders in a PPP procurement process?
[bookmark: q22_3_always][bookmark: q22_3_often][bookmark: q22_3_occ][bookmark: q22_3_rarely][bookmark: q22_3_never][bookmark: q22_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	23. Can potential bidders/tenderers submit questions to clarify the public procurement notice and/or the bidding/tender documents?

	[bookmark: q23_questions_y][bookmark: q23_questions_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q23_questions_n]|_|No
23.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority answer questions and clarifications form the bidders?
[bookmark: q23_1_always][bookmark: q23_1_often][bookmark: q23_1_occ][bookmark: q23_1_rarely][bookmark: q23_1_never][bookmark: q23_1_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
23.2. If yes, can the bidders also suggest innovations to improve the tender documents or procurement approach, including for example the provision of value engineering and/or technologically neutral options?
[bookmark: q23_2_innov_y][bookmark: q23_2_innov_basis][bookmark: q23_2_innov_elaborat]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and elaborate on the kind of innovations that are allowed:      
[bookmark: q23_2_innov_n]|_|No.

23.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the procuring authority open to suggestions of innovations (e.g., provision of value engineering and/or technologically neutral options) to improve the tender documents/procurement approach? 
[bookmark: q23_3_always][bookmark: q23_3_often][bookmark: q23_3_occ][bookmark: q23_3_rarely][bookmark: q23_3_never][bookmark: q23_3_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
23.4. If yes, is there a timeframe for the procuring authority to address questions and clarifications by bidders?
[bookmark: q23_4_qs_time_y][bookmark: q23_4_qs_time_days][bookmark: q23_4_qs_time_basis]|_|Yes. Please indicate the timeframe:       and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q23_4_qs_time_n]|_|No
23.5. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority abide by such a timeframe?
[bookmark: q23_5_always][bookmark: q23_5_often][bookmark: q23_5_occ][bookmark: q23_5_rarely][bookmark: q23_5_never][bookmark: q23_5_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

23.6. If yes, notwithstanding confidential information pertaining to the bidders, does the procuring authority disclose those questions and clarifications to all potential bidders?
[bookmark: q23_6_disclose_y][bookmark: q23_6_disclose_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q23_6_disclose_n]|_|No

23.7. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the disclosure of information about questions and/or clarifications done?
[bookmark: q23_7_always][bookmark: q23_7_often][bookmark: q23_7_occasionally][bookmark: q23_7_rarely][bookmark: q23_7_never][bookmark: q23_7_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
23.8. If yes, does the procuring authority extend the proposal submission deadline due to the modifications introduced in the bidding/tender documents?
[bookmark: q23_8_extend_dead_y][bookmark: q23_8_extend_dead_ba]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q23_8_extend_dead_n]|_|No. 
23.9. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is an extension of the deadline granted when required due to the modifications introduced in the bidding/tender documents?
[bookmark: q23_9_always][bookmark: q23_9_often][bookmark: q23_9_occ][bookmark: q23_9_rarely][bookmark: q23_9_never][bookmark: q23_9_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	24. Besides questions and clarifications, can the procuring authority conduct a pre-bid conference?

	[bookmark: q24_dialogue_y][bookmark: q24_dialogue_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q24_dialogue_n]|_|No
24.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority conduct a pre-bid conference?
[bookmark: q24_1_always][bookmark: q24_1_often][bookmark: q24_1_occ][bookmark: q24_1_rarely][bookmark: q24_1_never][bookmark: q24_1_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

24.2. If yes, notwithstanding confidential information pertaining to the bidders, does the procuring authority disclose the response to the queries raised by the bidders in the pre-bid conference to all bidders?
[bookmark: q24_2_disclose_y][bookmark: q24_2_disclose_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q24_2_disclose_n]|_|No

24.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the disclosure of information about the pre-bid conference actually done? 
[bookmark: q24_3_always][bookmark: q24_3_often][bookmark: q24_3_occ][bookmark: q24_3_rarely][bookmark: q24_3_never][bookmark: q24_3_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	25. Does the procuring authority require the bidders to prepare and submit a financial model with their proposals[footnoteRef:6]/ bids?  [6:  A financial model is an analytical tool that allows the user to assess the financial robustness of the project by representing its expected financial performance, including cash flows, returns, etc. Not to be confused with a financial proposal. ] 


	[bookmark: q25_financial_y][bookmark: q25_financial_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q25_financial_n][bookmark: q25_finan_examples]|_|No. If no, please elaborate:      
25.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are the financial models provided by the bidders are sound and robust? 
[bookmark: q25_1_always][bookmark: q25_1_often][bookmark: q25_1_occ][bookmark: q25_1_rarely][bookmark: q25_1_never][bookmark: q25_1_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	26. Does the procuring authority evaluate the bids/tenders strictly and solely in accordance with the evaluation criteria stated in the bidding/tender documents?

	[bookmark: q26_criteria_y][bookmark: q26_criteria_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q26_criteria_n]|_|No 
26.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the specified criteria respected? 
[bookmark: q26_1_always][bookmark: q26_1_often][bookmark: q26_1_occ][bookmark: q26_1_rarely][bookmark: q26_1_never][bookmark: q26_1_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

26.2. Can criteria other than price (non-price attributes) be used when evaluating the tenders/bids of a PPP contract? 
[bookmark: q26_2_crit_other_y][bookmark: q26_2_crit_other_bas]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q26_2_crit_other_n]|_|No 
26.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are criteria other than price (non-price attributes) used for PPP contracts? 
[bookmark: q26_3_always][bookmark: q26_3_often][bookmark: q26_3_occ][bookmark: q26_3_rarely][bookmark: q26_3_never][bookmark: q26_3_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

26.4. If criteria other than price are used, does it have to be justified, objective and quantifiable? 
[bookmark: q26_4_othr_just_y][bookmark: q26_4_othr_just_basi]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q26_4_othr_just_n]|_|No 
26.5. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are criteria other than price justified, objective and quantifiable? 
[bookmark: q26_5_always][bookmark: q26_5_often][bookmark: q26_5_occ][bookmark: q26_5_rarely][bookmark: q26_5_never][bookmark: q26_5_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

26.6. When price is used as one of the evaluation criteria, does the procuring authority provide a cost estimate?
[bookmark: q26_6_estimate_y][bookmark: q26_6_estimate_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q26_6_estimate_n]|_|No 
26.7. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is a cost estimate provided when price is used as the evaluation criteria? 
[bookmark: q26_7_always][bookmark: q26_7_often][bookmark: q26_7_occ][bookmark: q26_7_rarely][bookmark: q26_7_never][bookmark: q26_7_elaborate]|_|Always  |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	27. In the case where only one proposal is submitted, which of the following options best describes the way the procuring authority deals with them? (Please select only one)?

	[bookmark: q27_proposal_a][bookmark: q27_proposal_a_basis]|_| The procuring authority follows a specific procedure before awarding a PPP contract where only one proposal is submitted. Please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q27_proposal_b][bookmark: q27_proposal_b_basis]|_| The procuring authority considers sole proposal valid as long as it meets the conditions outlined in the tender documents. Please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q27_proposal_c][bookmark: q27_proposal_c_basis]|_| The procuring authority does not award a PPP contract if only one proposal is submitted. Please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q27_proposal_d]|_| The regulatory framework does not include any provisions.
27.1. Based on your experience, in practice, when only one proposal is received, how often are the procurement procedures followed to ensure it offers the best value for money? 
[bookmark: q27_1_always][bookmark: q27_1_often][bookmark: q27_1_occ][bookmark: q27_1_rarely][bookmark: q27_1_never][bookmark: q27_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	28. Does the procuring authority publish the contract award notice?

	[bookmark: q28_awardnotice_y][bookmark: q28_awardnotice_basi]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the means of publication and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q28_awardnotice_n]|_|No
28.1. If yes, is the contract award notice published online?
[bookmark: q28_1_noticeweb_y][bookmark: q28_1_noticeweb_web]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the website:      
[bookmark: q28_1_noticeweb_n]|_|No
28.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the contract award notice published on a website of free and open access?
[bookmark: q28_2_always][bookmark: q28_2_often][bookmark: q28_2_occ][bookmark: q28_2_rarely][bookmark: q28_2_never][bookmark: q28_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
28.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the award notice published on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q28_3_always][bookmark: q28_3_often][bookmark: q28_3_occasionally][bookmark: q28_3_rarely][bookmark: q28_3_never][bookmark: q28_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	29. Does the procuring authority notify all the bidders individually about the result of the PPP tendering/bidding process?

	[bookmark: q29_result_y][bookmark: q29_result_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q29_result_n][bookmark: q29_result_elaborate]|_|No. If no, please elaborate:      
29.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority notify all bidders /tenderers individually with the results of the bidding/tender process?
[bookmark: q29_1_always][bookmark: q29_1_often][bookmark: q29_1_occ][bookmark: q29_1_rarely][bookmark: q29_1_never][bookmark: q29_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
29.2. If yes, does the notification of the result of the PPP procurement process include the grounds for the selection of the winning bid/tender? 
[bookmark: q29_2_grounds_y][bookmark: q29_2_grounds_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       
[bookmark: q29_2_grounds_n]|_|No
29.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority provide all bidders/tenderers with the grounds for awarding the winning bid?
[bookmark: q29_3_always][bookmark: q29_3_often][bookmark: q29_3_occ][bookmark: q29_3_rarely][bookmark: q29_3_never][bookmark: q29_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

29.4. If yes, does the procuring authority provide bidders/tenderers with the option of holding a debriefing meeting to discuss why their bid/tender was not selected?
[bookmark: q29_4_debrief_y][bookmark: q29_4_debrief_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provision:      
[bookmark: q29_4_debrief_n]|_|No.
29.5. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority hold a debriefing meeting requested by the bidder/tenderer to discuss why his/her bid/tender was not selected?
[bookmark: q29_5_always][bookmark: q29_5_often][bookmark: q29_5_occ][bookmark: q29_5_rarely][bookmark: q29_5_never][bookmark: q29_5_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	30. Is there a standstill (or pause) period after the contract award and before the signing of the contract in order to allow aggrieved unsuccessful bidders to challenge the award decision?

	[bookmark: q30_standstill_y][bookmark: q30_standstill_basis][bookmark: q30_standstill_days]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and the time in calendar days:      
[bookmark: q30_standstill_n]|_|No
30.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority provide a standstill period?
[bookmark: q30_1_always][bookmark: q30_1_often][bookmark: q30_1_occ][bookmark: q30_1_rarely][bookmark: q30_1_never][bookmark: q30_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:       
30.2. If yes, is the standstill period set out in the notice of intention to award?
[bookmark: q30_2_standstill_y][bookmark: q30_2_standstill_b]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q30_2_standstill_n]|_|No. 
30.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the established regime provide aggrieved unsuccessful bidders with a fair opportunity to challenge the award decision?
[bookmark: q30_3_always][bookmark: q30_3_often][bookmark: q30_3_occ][bookmark: q30_3_rarely][bookmark: q30_3_never][bookmark: q30_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	31. Does the regulatory framework restrict material negotiations (for example price or scope) with the winning bidder between the award and the signature of the PPP contract?

	[bookmark: q31_negoti_y][bookmark: q31_negoti_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q31_negoti_n]|_|No
31.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is this restriction respected in practice? 
[bookmark: q31_1_often][bookmark: q31_1_occ][bookmark: q31_1_rarely][bookmark: q31_1_never][bookmark: q31_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
31.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are post-award material negotiations (price or scope) used in practice? 
[bookmark: q31_2_always][bookmark: q31_2_often][bookmark: q31_2_occ][bookmark: q31_2_rarely][bookmark: q31_2_never][bookmark: q31_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	32. Does the regulatory framework allow for complaint review mechanisms pertaining to the PPP bidding/tendering process?

	[bookmark: q32_review_y][bookmark: q32_review_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q32_review_n]|_|No

32.1. If yes, is there a timeframe in which decisions on complaints are issued? 
[bookmark: q32_1_timeframe_y][bookmark: q32_1_timeframe_time][bookmark: q32_1_timeframe_basi]|_|Yes. If yes, please elaborate the timeframe       and provide the relevant legal/ regulatory provisions      
[bookmark: q32_1_timeframe_n]|_|No
32.2. If yes, are decisions subject to appeal?
[bookmark: q32_2_appeal_y][bookmark: q32_2_appeal_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/ regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q32_2_appeal_n]|_|No
32.3. If yes, is the original complaint and/or the appeal reviewed resolved by an independent administrative authority (other than the procuring authority or the courts)?
[bookmark: q32_3_independent_y][bookmark: q32_3_independent_ba][bookmark: q32_3_independent_na]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and identify the approving authority      
[bookmark: q32_3_independent_n]|_|No

32.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are the issued decisions on complaints enforced?
[bookmark: q32_4_always][bookmark: q32_4_often][bookmark: q32_4_occ][bookmark: q32_4_rarely][bookmark: q32_4_never][bookmark: q32_4_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      



	33. Does the procuring authority publish the PPP contract? (notwithstanding the protection of commercially sensitive information)

	[bookmark: q33_contract_y][bookmark: q33_contract_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q33_contract_n]|_|No.
If yes, which of the following elements does the publication include (check all that apply) 
	
	Available (e.g. by request or in the official gazette)  
	Available online 
	Relevant legal/regulatory provision
	Published on a regularly updated website

	33.1. A summary of the PPP contract
	[bookmark: q33_1_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q33_1_online]|_|
[bookmark: q33_1_online_web]Website:      
	[bookmark: q33_1_basis]     
	[bookmark: q33_1_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q33_1_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q33_1_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q33_1_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q33_1_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q33_1_elaborate]Details:      

	33.2. The full PPP contract
	[bookmark: q33_2_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q33_2_online]|_|
[bookmark: q33_2_online_web]Website:      
	[bookmark: q33_2_basis]     
	[bookmark: q33_2_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q33_2_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q33_2_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q33_2_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q33_2_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q33_2_elaborate]Details:      

	33.3. All of the contract’s annexes and appendixes 
	[bookmark: q33_3_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q33_3_online]|_|
[bookmark: q33_3_online_web]Website:      
	[bookmark: q33_3_basis]     
	[bookmark: q33_3_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q33_3_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q33_3_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q33_3_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q33_3_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q33_3_elaborate]Details:      

	33.4. Any subsequent amendment made to the PPP contract
	[bookmark: q33_4_available]|_|
	[bookmark: q33_4_online]|_|
[bookmark: q33_4_online_web]Website:      
	[bookmark: q33_4_basis]     
	[bookmark: q33_4_always]|_|Always
[bookmark: q33_4_often]|_|Often
[bookmark: q33_4_occ]|_|Occasionally
[bookmark: q33_4_rarely]|_|Rarely
[bookmark: q33_4_never]|_|Never
[bookmark: q33_4_elaborate]Details:      






	34. Please provide any additional information or comments on the answers to the question(s) above and indicate which one(s) you are referring to: 

	[bookmark: q34_addtl3]     



E. Contract Management 

	35. Does the procuring authority or contract management authority establish a system to manage the PPP contract (i.e., attributing responsibilities or establishing specific management tools)?

	[bookmark: q35_manage_y][bookmark: q35_manage_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q35_manage_n]|_|No

35.1. If yes, which of the following tools does it include (check all that apply)?
	Tools 
	Included in the PPP management system
	Relevant legal/regulatory provisions

	Establishment of a PPP contract management team
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_a]|_|
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_a_basis]     

	Participation of the members of the PPP contract management team in the PPP procurement process and/or vice versa
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_b]|_|
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_b_basis]     

	Elaboration of a PPP contract management manual or an equivalent document
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_c]|_|
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_c_basis]     

	Establishment of personnel training programs (i.e., initial training and continued training throughout the course of the project)
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_d]|_|
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_basis]     

	Establishment of a risk mitigation mechanism which considers the evolving nature of risks throughout the project lifecycle (guidelines, specific processes, insurance regime, etc.)
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_e]|_|
	[bookmark: q35_1_tools_e_basis]     



35.2. Which of the following options best describes the required qualifications of the PPP contract management team members? (Please select only one)
[bookmark: q35_2_qual_1][bookmark: q35_2_qual_1_basis]|_| The membership of the PPP contract management team is specified and/or its members are required to meet detailed qualifications. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       
[bookmark: q35_2_qual_2][bookmark: q35_2_qual_2_b_basis]|_| The PPP contract management team members are required to meet sufficient qualification without specific details. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:           
[bookmark: q35_2_qual_3][bookmark: q35_2_qual_3_b_basis]|_| The PPP contract management team members are not required to meet any specific qualifications. Please elaborate and provide examples:      

35.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the PPP contract management team have competence in performing its duties? 
[bookmark: q35_3_always][bookmark: q35_3_often][bookmark: q35_3_occ][bookmark: q35_3_rarely][bookmark: q35_3_never][bookmark: q35_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

35.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are the management systems in place sufficient to ensure proper PPP contract implementation?
[bookmark: q35_4_always][bookmark: q35_4_often][bookmark: q35_4_occ][bookmark: q35_4_rarely][bookmark: q35_4_never][bookmark: q35_4_elaborate]|_| Always |_| Often |_| Occasionally |_| Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      




	36. [bookmark: _Hlk11337597]Does the procuring or contract management authority establish a monitoring and evaluation system of the construction of the PPP project (i.e., system for tracking progress of construction, monitoring and evaluation of performance, etc.)?

	[bookmark: q36_progress_y][bookmark: q36_progress_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q36_progress_n]|_|No

36.1. If yes, is the PPP contract construction performance information made available to the public (e.g. by request or published in the official gazette/bulletin board)?  
[bookmark: q36_1_progress_y][bookmark: q36_1_progress_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q36_1_progress_n]|_|No
36.2. If yes, is the PPP contract construction performance information made publicly available online?
[bookmark: q36_2_progress_y][bookmark: q36_2_progress_web]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify the website:      
[bookmark: q36_2_progress_n]|_|No

36.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the construction progress properly monitored?
[bookmark: q36_3_always][bookmark: q36_3_often][bookmark: q36_3_occ][bookmark: q36_3_rarely][bookmark: q36_3_never][bookmark: q36_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

36.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is PPP contract construction performance information available on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q36_4_always][bookmark: q36_4_often][bookmark: q36_4_occ][bookmark: q36_4_rarely][bookmark: q36_4_never][bookmark: q36_4_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	37. Does the procuring or contract management authority establish a monitoring and evaluation system of the PPP contract implementation after construction?

	[bookmark: q37_monitor_y][bookmark: q37_monitor_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q37_monitor_n]|_|No

37.1. If yes, which of the following tools does it include (check all that apply)?
	Tools 
	Included in the monitoring and evaluation system
	Relevant legal/regulatory provisions

	Payments are linked to performance
	[bookmark: q37_1_a]|_|
	[bookmark: q37_1_a_basis]     

	Performance is assessed against output/ Key performance indicators (KPI) set in the tender documents and the PPP contract
	[bookmark: q37_1_b]|_|
	[bookmark: q37_1_b_basis]     

	The procuring or contract management authority can abate (reduce) payments for non-performance of operating obligations under the PPP contract
	[bookmark: q37_1_c]|_|
	[bookmark: q37_1_c_basis]     

	The private partner must provide the procuring or contract management authority with periodic operational and financial data
	[bookmark: q37_1_d]|_|
	[bookmark: q37_1_d_basis]     

	The procuring or contract management authority must periodically gather information on the performance of the PPP contract
	[bookmark: q37_1_e]|_|
	[bookmark: q37_1_e_basis]     

	The PPP contract performance information must be available to the public (e.g. by request or in the official gazette/bulletin board)
	[bookmark: q37_1_f]|_|
	[bookmark: q37_1_f_basis]     

	The PPP contract performance information must be available online
	[bookmark: q37_1_g]|_|
[bookmark: q37_1_g_web]If yes, please specify the website:      

	[bookmark: q37_1_g_basis]     



37.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the contract performance of the PPP properly monitored?
[bookmark: q37_2_always][bookmark: q37_2_often][bookmark: q37_2_occ][bookmark: q37_2_rarely][bookmark: q37_2_never][bookmark: q37_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

37.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is PPP contract performance information available on a regularly updated website?
[bookmark: q37_3_always][bookmark: q37_3_often][bookmark: q37_3_occ][bookmark: q37_3_rarely][bookmark: q37_3_never][bookmark: q37_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	38. Is there an economic/technical regulator to oversee the implementation of PPP contracts? 

	[bookmark: q38_economic_y][bookmark: q38_economic_name][bookmark: q38_economic_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide it name and website       and the relevant legal/regulatory provisions establishing its mandate:      
[bookmark: q38_economic_n]|_|No. 

38.1. If yes, does the economic regulator have (check all that apply): 
[bookmark: q38_1_political][bookmark: q38_1_political_bas]|_| Political autonomy (for example, through independence of its Directors’ appointments of the Line Ministry or other similar mechanisms). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q38_1_managerial][bookmark: q38_1_managerial_bas]|_| Managerial autonomy (freedom to determine the use of its budget and organization of resources) If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q38_1_tariff][bookmark: q38_1_tariff_basis]|_| Tariff setting authority. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q38_1_dispute][bookmark: q38_1_dispute_basis]|_| Dispute resolution authority. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      

38.2. Based on your experience, in practice, to what extent does the regulator perform its duties independent of political intervention?
[bookmark: q38_2_always][bookmark: q38_2_often][bookmark: q38_2_occ][bookmark: q38_2_rarely][bookmark: q38_2_never][bookmark: q38_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      



	39. Are foreign companies restricted from repatriating the income resulting from the operation of a PPP project?  

	[bookmark: q39_foreign_y][bookmark: q39_foreign_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q39_foreign_n]|_|No
39.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often can the private party repatriate the income resulting from a PPP project?
[bookmark: q39_1_always][bookmark: q39_1_often][bookmark: q39_1_occ][bookmark: q39_1_rarely][bookmark: q39_1_never][bookmark: q39_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      



	40. Does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) expressly regulate changes in the ownership structure (i.e. stakeholder composition) of the private partner and/or assignment of the PPP contract? 

	[bookmark: q40_change_y][bookmark: q40_change_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q40_change_n]|_|No
40.1. If yes, which of the following circumstances are specifically regulated? (check all that apply):
[bookmark: q40_1_nochange_list][bookmark: q40_1_nochange_basis]|_| Any change in the private partner during an initial period (e.g. construction and first two years of commercial operation). If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q40_1_control_list][bookmark: q40_1_control_basis]|_| Changes of ownership/contract assignment, at any time during the contract, must preserve the same technical qualifications as the original operator. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q40_1_sub_list][bookmark: q40_1_sub_basis]|_| In other cases, flexibility to change the ownership structure and/or assign the contract. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      

40.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is there a change in the structure of the private party or assignment of the PPP contract?
[bookmark: q40_2_always][bookmark: q40_2_often][bookmark: q40_2_occ][bookmark: q40_2_rarely][bookmark: q40_2_never][bookmark: q40_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
40.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do the clauses established in the PPP contract satisfactorily deal with changes in the ownership structure of the private partner and/or assignment of the PPP contract? 
[bookmark: q40_3_always][bookmark: q40_3_often][bookmark: q40_3_occ][bookmark: q40_3_rarely][bookmark: q40_3_never][bookmark: q40_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      




	41. Does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) expressly regulate the modification or renegotiation of the PPP contract (once the contract is signed)?

	[bookmark: q41_reneg_y][bookmark: q41_reneg_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q41_reneg_n]|_|No

41.1. If yes, is an approval from a government authority, other than the procuring authority, required?
[bookmark: q41_1_reneg_y][bookmark: q41_1_reneg_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q41_1_reneg_n]|_|No

41.2. If yes, which of the following circumstances are specifically regulated? (check all that apply):
[bookmark: q41_2_reneg_1][bookmark: q41_2_reneg_1_basis]|_| A change in the scope and/or object of the contract. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:       
41.2.1. If yes, is there a threshold for which a new tendering process is required?
[bookmark: q41_2_1_new_y][bookmark: q41_2_1_new_basis][bookmark: q41_2_1_new_elaborat]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:       and please elaborate:      
[bookmark: q41_2_1_new_n]|_|No
[bookmark: q41_2_reneg_2][bookmark: q41_2_reneg_2_b]|_| A change in the risk allocation of the contract. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/ standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q41_2_reneg_3][bookmark: q41_2_reneg_3_b]|_|A change in the financial and/or economic balance of the contract. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q41_2_reneg_4][bookmark: q41_2_reneg_4_b]|_| A change in the duration of the contract. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q41_2_reneg_5][bookmark: q41_2_reneg_5_b]|_| A change in the agreed price or tariff or annuity payments. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      


41.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is a PPP contract modified/amended?
[bookmark: q41_3_always][bookmark: q41_3_often][bookmark: q41_3_occ][bookmark: q41_3_rarely][bookmark: q41_3_never][bookmark: q41_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      

41.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is a PPP contract modified/amended outside the circumstances established by the regulatory framework?
[bookmark: q41_4_always][bookmark: q41_4_often][bookmark: q41_4_occ][bookmark: q41_4_rarely][bookmark: q41_4_never][bookmark: q41_4_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      

41.5. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring/contract management authority bid out a new contract for additional works that involve significant changes in the scope of the originally awarded contract, instead of modifying/amending the contract? 
[bookmark: q41_5_always][bookmark: q41_5_often][bookmark: q41_5_occ][bookmark: q41_5_rarely][bookmark: q41_5_never][bookmark: q41_5_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      

41.6. Can the procuring/contract management authority modify a PPP contract unilaterally?
[bookmark: q41_6_unilateral_y][bookmark: q41_6_unilateral_bas]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q41_6_unilateral_n]|_|No
41.7. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do unilateral PPP contract modifications occur?
[bookmark: q41_7_always][bookmark: q41_7_often][bookmark: q41_7_occ][bookmark: q41_7_rarely][bookmark: q41_7_never][bookmark: q41_7_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	42. Does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) expressly address the following circumstances that may occur during the life of the PPP contract? (check all that apply): 

	42.1. [bookmark: q42_1_forcemaj_list][bookmark: q42_1_forcemaj_basis]|_| Force Majeure. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      

42.2. [bookmark: q42_2_adverse_list][bookmark: q42_2_adverse_basis]|_| Material Adverse Government Action[footnoteRef:7]. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:       [7:  Material Adverse Government Action means any act or omission by the procuring authority or other relevant authority, which occurs during the term of the PPP Contract and which has a material adverse effect on (i) the ability of the private partner to comply with any of its material obligations under this PPP Contract and/or (ii) the cost or the profits arising from such performance.] 


42.3. [bookmark: q42_3_law_list][bookmark: q42_3_law_basis]|_| Change in the Law. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      

42.4. [bookmark: q42_4_refinance_list][bookmark: q42_4_refinance_basi]|_| Refinancing. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      

42.5. [bookmark: q42_5_subcontra_list][bookmark: q42_5_subcontra_basi]|_| Subcontracting and replacement of the subcontractors. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
42.6. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do the clauses established in the PPP contract satisfactorily deal with the circumstances identified above? 
[bookmark: q42_6_always][bookmark: q42_6_often][bookmark: q42_6_occ][bookmark: q42_6_rarely][bookmark: q42_6_never][bookmark: q42_6_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	43. Does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) allow for alternative dispute resolution mechanisms in case of disputes arising from the implementation of PPP contracts?

	[bookmark: q43_adr_y][bookmark: q43_adr_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q43_adr_n]|_|No

43.1. If yes, is arbitration available as an option?
[bookmark: q43_1_domonly][bookmark: q43_1_domonly_basis]|_|Yes. Domestic arbitration only. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q43_1_dominter][bookmark: q43_1_dominter_basis]|_|Yes. Domestic arbitration and international arbitration. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q43_1_none]|_|No
43.2. If applicable, are arbitration awards enforceable by local courts?
[bookmark: q43_2_arbenforced_y][bookmark: q43_2_arbenforced_ba]|_|Yes. If yes, please elaborate and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q43_2_arbenforced_n]|_|No
43.3. Are other Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) options available (including mediation or dispute resolution boards)?
[bookmark: q43_3_options_y][bookmark: q43_3_options_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please elaborate and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q43_3_options_n]|_|No
43.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is arbitration or other ADR the designated choice for these disputes in PPP contracts?
[bookmark: q43_4_always][bookmark: q43_4_often][bookmark: q43_4_occ][bookmark: q43_4_rarely][bookmark: q43_4_never][bookmark: q43_4_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      
43.5. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are arbitration awards enforced?
[bookmark: q43_5_always][bookmark: q43_5_often][bookmark: q43_5_occ][bookmark: q43_5_rarely][bookmark: q43_5_never][bookmark: q43_5_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      



	44. Does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) allow for the lenders to take control of the PPP project (lender step-in rights) if either the private partner defaults or if the PPP contract is under threat of termination for failure to meet service obligations?

	[bookmark: q44_takeover_y][bookmark: q44_takeover_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q44_takeover_n]|_|No

44.1. If yes, which of the following options best describes the lender step-in right? (Please select only one)
[bookmark: q44_1_takeover_1][bookmark: q44_1_takeover_1_bas]|_| The regulatory framework expressly regulates the lender step-in rights. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:     
[bookmark: q44_1_takeover_2][bookmark: q44_1_takeover_2_bas]|_| The regulatory framework prescribes that a direct agreement should be signed with the lenders. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:     
[bookmark: q44_1_takeover_3][bookmark: q44_1_takeover_3_bas]|_| The regulatory framework prescribes that the lender step-in rights should be regulated in the contract. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:     
[bookmark: q44_1_takeover_4][bookmark: q44_1_takeover_4_spe]|_| Other, please specify:      

44.2. Based on your experience, in practice, how often have lenders used step-in rights in the circumstances mentioned above?
[bookmark: q44_2_always][bookmark: q44_2_often][bookmark: q44_2_occ][bookmark: q44_2_rarely][bookmark: q44_2_never][bookmark: q44_2_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      



	45. Does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) expressly address the grounds for termination of a PPP contract?

	[bookmark: q45_termi_y][bookmark: q45_termi_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q45_termi_n]|_|No
45.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often do the clauses established in the PPP contract satisfactorily deal with contract termination? 
[bookmark: q45_1_always][bookmark: q45_1_often][bookmark: q45_1_occ][bookmark: q45_1_rarely][bookmark: q45_1_never][bookmark: q45_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      
45.2. If yes, does the regulatory framework (including standard contractual clauses) also addresses the consequences for the termination of the PPP contract?
[bookmark: q45_2_termi_y][bookmark: q45_2_termi_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory/standard contractual provisions:      
[bookmark: q45_2_termi_n]|_|No
45.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are the consequences for the termination of the PPP contract enforced?
[bookmark: q45_3_always][bookmark: q45_3_often][bookmark: q45_3_occ][bookmark: q45_3_rarely][bookmark: q45_3_never][bookmark: q45_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      

45.4. Based on your experience, in practice, how often is the private partner compensated for the termination of the PPP contract caused by the grantor’s default?
[bookmark: q45_4_always][bookmark: q45_4_often][bookmark: q45_4_occ][bookmark: q45_4_rarely][bookmark: q45_4_never][bookmark: q45_4_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_| Never Please elaborate:      



	46. Please provide any additional information or comments on the answers to the question(s) above and indicate which one(s) you are referring to:

	[bookmark: q46_addtl5]     



F. Unsolicited Proposals

In Section F below, we would like to ask you a few questions regarding Unsolicited Proposals. As a result, disregard our previous case study assumptions. Instead, and only for the purpose of Section F, please assume that the procuring authority receives an unsolicited proposal regarding, for example, an infrastructure project in the transportation sector (i.e., national highway) with an estimated value of USD 150 million from a consortium of privately-owned firms before initiating any activities towards the procurement of the project.

	47. Are unsolicited proposals in [country_name]: (choose only one)

	[bookmark: q47_unsol1_1]|_|Explicitly prohibited by the legal framework? (If prohibited, skip to section G)
[bookmark: q47_unsol1_2]|_|Explicitly allowed by the legal framework?
[bookmark: q47_unsol1_3]|_|Not regulated by the legal framework, but do happen in practice?
[bookmark: q47_unsol1_4]|_|Not regulated by the legal framework, and do not happen in practice? (if not done in practice, skip to section G)
[bookmark: q47_unsol1_basis]If the legal framework explicitly prohibits or allows unsolicited proposals, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions     
47.1. If USPs are allowed and/or happen in practice, based on your experience, how often are unsolicited proposals submitted to the Government?
[bookmark: q47_1_always][bookmark: q47_1_often][bookmark: q47_1_occ][bookmark: q47_1_rarely][bookmark: q47_1_never][bookmark: q47_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	48. Does the procuring authority conduct an assessment to evaluate unsolicited proposals? (if not, skip to question 50)

	[bookmark: q48_unsolev_y][bookmark: q48_unsolev_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q48_unsolev_n]|_|No
48.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are such evaluations conducted for unsolicited proposals?
[bookmark: q48_1_always][bookmark: q48_1_often][bookmark: q48_1_occ][bookmark: q48_1_rarely][bookmark: q48_1_never][bookmark: q48_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      

48.2. If yes, is there any vetting procedure and/or pre-feasibility analysis before fully assessing the unsolicited proposal?
[bookmark: q48_2_unsolev_y][bookmark: q48_2_unsolev_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q48_2_unsolev_n]|_|No
48.3. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are such vetting procedures/ or pre-feasibility analysis conducted for unsolicited proposals?
[bookmark: q48_3_always][bookmark: q48_3_often][bookmark: q48_3_occ][bookmark: q48_3_rarely][bookmark: q48_3_never][bookmark: q48_3_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	49. Which of the following options best describes how the procuring authority ensures that unsolicited proposals are consistent with existing government priorities? (Please select only one)

	[bookmark: q49_consistent_a][bookmark: q49_consistent_a_bas]|_| The procuring authority follows a specific procedure to ensure the consistency of PPPs with other government investment priorities. If yes, please specify and provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q49_consistent_b][bookmark: q49_consistent_b_bas]|_| The regulatory framework requires unsolicited proposals to be among the existing government priorities without establishing specific procedures to achieve that goal. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q49_consistent_c][bookmark: q49_consistent_c_bas]|_| The regulatory framework does not include any provisions, but the procuring authority evaluates the consistency of USPs with other government investment priorities in practice. If yes, please elaborate:      
[bookmark: q49_consistent_d][bookmark: q49_consistent_d_spe]|_| The procuring authority does not evaluate unsolicited proposals against existing government priorities. Please elaborate and provide examples:      

49.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often are USPs part of the broader government public priorities/public investment system? 
[bookmark: q49_1_always][bookmark: q49_1_often][bookmark: q49_1_occ][bookmark: q49_1_rarely][bookmark: q49_1_never][bookmark: q49_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	50. Does the procuring authority initiate a competitive PPP procurement procedure when proceeding with the unsolicited proposal?

	[bookmark: q50_compet_y][bookmark: q50_compet_basis]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
[bookmark: q50_compet_n]|_|No
50.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority initiate a competitive PPP procurement procedure when proceeding with unsolicited proposals?
[bookmark: q50_1_always][bookmark: q50_1_often][bookmark: q50_1_occ][bookmark: q50_1_rarely][bookmark: q50_1_never][bookmark: q50_1_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	51. Does the procuring authority grant a minimum period of time to additional prospective bidders (besides the proponent) to prepare their proposals?

	[bookmark: q51_mintime_y][bookmark: q51_mintime_basis][bookmark: q51_mintime_days]|_|Yes. If yes, please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:       and the time in calendar days:      
[bookmark: q51_mintime_n]|_|No
51.1. Based on your experience, in practice, how many days does the procuring authority actually grant to additional bidders to submit their bids after unsolicited proposals have been presented? (Please select one only):
[bookmark: q51_1_30][bookmark: q51_1_90][bookmark: q51_1_180][bookmark: q51_1_181]|_|Between 0 and 30|_|Between 31 and 90|_|Between 91 and 180|_| More than 181
[bookmark: q51_1_elaborate]Please elaborate:      



	52. Does the procuring authority use any of the following incentive mechanisms to reward/compensate the submission of unsolicited proposals? (check all that apply):

	52.1. [bookmark: q52_1_mechanism_list]|_| Access to the best and final offer (BAFO) process and/or automatic shortlisting.
52.2. [bookmark: q52_2_mechanism_list]|_| Developer’s fee (reimbursing the original proponent for the project development cost).
52.3. [bookmark: q52_3_mechanism_list]|_| Bid Bonus.
52.4. [bookmark: q52_4_mechanism_list]|_| Swiss challenge (If unsuccessful, the original proponent has the option to match the winning bid and win the contract).
52.5. [bookmark: q52_5_mechanism_list][bookmark: q52_5_mechanism_spec]|_| Other, please specify:      
[bookmark: q52_mechanism_basis]Please provide the relevant legal/regulatory provisions:      
52.6. Based on your experience, in practice, how often does the procuring authority use one of the mechanisms above to reward/compensate unsolicited proposals?
[bookmark: q52_6_always][bookmark: q52_6_often][bookmark: q52_6_occ][bookmark: q52_6_rarely][bookmark: q52_6_never][bookmark: q52_6_elaborate]|_|Always |_|Often |_|Occasionally |_|Rarely |_|Never Please elaborate:      



	53. Please provide any additional information or comments on the answers to the question(s) above and indicate which one(s) you are referring to:

	[bookmark: q53_addtl4]     



G. Additional Information

	54. What are the main areas of improvement that will enhance the participation of the private sector in PPP projects in your country? Please select only three issues from the list below.

	54.1. [bookmark: q54_1]Stronger PPP regulatory framework |_|
54.2. [bookmark: q54_2]Predictability and continuity of legal and regulatory regime |_|
54.3. [bookmark: q54_3]Better enforceability of the regulations |_|
54.4. [bookmark: q54_4]Consistent political backing on the PPP program |_|
54.5. [bookmark: q54_5]Development of a pipeline of well-prepared projects |_|
54.6. [bookmark: q54_6]Adequate project preparation (capacity and funding) |_|
54.7. [bookmark: q54_7]More efficient and transparent procurement process |_|
54.8. [bookmark: q54_8]Availability of affordable debt |_|
54.9. [bookmark: q54_9]Availability of de-risking instruments |_| 
54.10. [bookmark: q54_10]Higher return to investors |_|
54.11. [bookmark: q54_11]Availability of reliable government funding |_| 
54.12. [bookmark: q54_12]Zero tolerance to fraud and corruption |_|
54.13. [bookmark: q54_13]Public compliance with obligations |_|
54.14. [bookmark: q54_14]Other. Please specify: |_|



	55. Please rate the extent to which, in your country, the PPP framework is an impediment to private sector’s participation in PPPs: 

	[bookmark: q55_no_problem]|_| No problem
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